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314 West 1Bth Street , Cheyenne, Wyoming 82001-4404

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Board of Trustees and Superintendent
Laramie County School District #1
Cheyenne, Wyoming
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate discretely presented component unit and remaining fund
information of Laramie County School District #1 (the "School District"), as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the School
District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Stateme11ts

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these fmancial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fmancial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor' s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the fmancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity' s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School
District's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate discretely presented component unit and remaining fund information of the School
District as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 10, the budgetary comparison information on pages 45
through 47, and the schedule of funding progress on page 48 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of fmancial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the School District's basic fmancial statements. The combining nonmajor fund financial
statements, WDE 601 form reconciliation schedule, and the schedule of expenditures of Federal awards,
as required by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audit of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not
a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining nonmajor fund
financial statements, WDE 601 form reconciliation schedule, and the schedule of expenditures of Federal
awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 27,
2014 on our consideration of the School District's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School District's
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Cheyenne, Wyoming
October 27, 2014
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LARAMIE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1
Management's Discussion and Analysis
As management of the Laramie County School District No. I, we offer readers of the District's financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the District' s financial activities for the year ended June 30,
2014. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the District's
financial statements, notes to the financial statements and various supplementary information which follow this
section.
Financial Highlights
• The District' s total combined net pos1t10n was $344,207,001 at June 30, 2014 which compares to
$328,524,827 at the beginning of the fiscal year, an increase of 5%.
• During the year, the District's expenses and transfers were $14,681 ,287 less than the $226,918,110
This includes all
generated in taxes and other revenues for governmental activities.
governmental funds including the General Fund, Grants Fund, Major Maintenance Fund,
Special Building Fund, Capital Projects Fund, and Recreation Mill Fund.
• The total cost of programs provided by the District' s governmental funds was $226,1 77,715 on a
modified accrual basis compared to $209,610,843 on the same basis in the prior year, an
increase of 8%.
• The District incurred additional long-term financing debt during the year and had a net increase in its
outstanding long-term debt of$767,858.
Overview of the Financial Statements
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District's basic financial statements.
The District' s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.
Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the District's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.
The statement of net position presents information on all of the District ' s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve
as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating. However,
fluctuations from year to year need to be reviewed in light of the timing of funding.
The statement of activities presents information for all of the current year's revenues and expenses regardless of
when cash is received or paid. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that
will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.
Both of the District's government-wide financial statements distinguish the functions of the District as being
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) as opposed to businesstype activities that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges. The District has only one business-type activity, the Enterprise Fund - Nutrition Services.
Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related requirements.
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District 's most significant funds, not
the District as a whole.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

All of the funds of the District can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds.

• Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However,
unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements
focu s on how money fl ows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end
available for spending in the future periods. Such information may be usefu l in evaluating a
government' s near-term financing requirements. Governmental fund information helps
determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near
future to finance educational programs.
The relationship (or differences) between
governmental activities reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities and the governmental funds are reconciled in the financial statements. The General
Fund, Grants Fund and Special Building Fund are considered major funds and are reported as
separate columns in the fund financial statements. All other governmental funds of the District
are combined into a si ng le, aggregated presentation . Individual fund data for each of these
non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in
thi s report.
• Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are used to account for services for which the District charges
participants a fee. T hese funds, like the government-wide statements, provide both long- and
short-term financial information. T he Enterprise Fund - N utrition Services is the only fund in
this category for the District.
• Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the District's own
programs. The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for these funds and is responsible for
ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes. All of the
District' s fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net position and a
statement of changes in fiduciary net pos ition. T he District has three funds in this category,
the Scholarship Fund, the Other Employee Benefits Fund and the Activities Fund.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a complete
understanding ofthe data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
In addition to the basic finan cial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information that further exp lains and supports the information in the financial statements.
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Financial Analysis of the District as a Whole
T he Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the District as a whole. The following provides a
summary ofthe District's net position at June 30,2014 and 2013:
Condensed Statement of Net Pos ilion
Bu s iness-Type
O:>vemmental Activities
Activities

Total
School Dis trict

2014

2013

2014

2013

2014

2013

$ 135,891,982
279,07 1,672
414,963,654

$ 129,553,774
264,152,053
393,705,827

$ 2,757,069
672,560
3,429,629

$ 1,750,538
64 1,485
2,392,023

$ 138,649,051
279,744,232
418,393,283

$ 131,304,312
264,793,538
3%,097,850

Other liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

31,24 1,699
9,428,201
40,669,900

57,605,413
9,428,247
67,033,660

517,342
58,740
576,082

484, 164
55, 199
539,363

31,759,041
9,486,94 1
4 1,245,982

58,089,577
9,483,446
67,573,023

Total deferred inflows
of resources

32,940,300

Current and other assets
Capital assets
To tal assets

Net pos ition :
Net inves tment in capital
assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position

32,940,300

278,228,437
5,615,603
57,509,414

264,069,517
4,819, 178
57,783,472

665,401

641,485

2.188, 146

$ 341,353,454

$ 326,672, 167

$ 2,853,547

1,211, 175

278,893,838
5,6 15,603
59,697,560

264,711,002
4,819,178
58,994,647

$ 1,852,660

$ 344,207,001

$ 328,524,827

The net investment in capital assets at June 30, 2014 is $278,893,83 8, which is the net book value of capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, equipment) of $279,744,232, Jess any related debt used to acquire those assets that
is still outstanding of $850,394. The District uses these capital assets to provide services to students;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the District' s investment in its capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, s ince the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
An additional portion of the District's net position (approximately 2 percent) represents resources that are
subj ect to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position,
$59,697,560, may be used to meet the District's ongoing obligations. This surplus is not an indication that the
District has significant resources available to meet financial obligations next year, but rather the result of having
long-term commitments that are less than currently available resources.
The District's total net position increased by $15,682, 174 during the year ended June 30, 20 14. The total cost of
a ll governmental activities this year was $210,536,823 and of the business-type activity was $6,360,207. The
amount that taxpayers paid for these activities through property taxes, including taxes paid through the State
Foundation Program, was $200,276,800.
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C hanges in Net Position
Business-Type
Governmental Activities
20 14

Total
School District

Activit ies
20 14

20 13

20 13

2013

2014

Revenues :
Program revenues:
Charges for services

$

Operating grants and
contributions

5 14, 190

$

11,312,656

547,48 1

$ 1,992,665

$2,073,879

$ 2,506, 855

$ 2,621 ,360

12, 10 1,9 15

3,665 ,254

3,365,657

14,977,910

15,467,572

General revenues:
Taxes
Governmental aid

30,091 ,087

29, 18 1,460

30,09 1,087

184,463,500

174,614 ,892

184,463,500

29,181 ,460
174,614,892

48,557

48,607

48,557

55,387

Gain on sale of capital
assets
M iscellaneous

306,626

(1 ,700,000)
225 ,2 18, 110

Transfers
Total revenues
Expenses:
Regular instruct ion
Special cd inst ruction
Vocational ed instruction

6,780

56,065

56,065
432,055

Insurance proceeds

3,175

3,258

( I ,200,000)

1,700,000

1,200,000

2 15,600,98 1

7,36 1,094

6,649,574

73 ,259,755

7 1, 136,115

42,003,146

39,775,141

435,230

309,884

232,579,204

222,250,555

73,259,755
42,003, 146

7 1, 136,115
3,700,033

39,775,14 1

3,87 1,847

3,700,033
24,409

3,871,847

Pup il services

17,290,329

17,290,329

16,9 19,099

Instruct ional staff services

11,892, 186

16,9 19,Q99
I 2,006,355

11 ,892, 186

12,006,355

General admin services

I,224,818

1,259,463

School admin services

11,683,752

I I,705,289

1,224 ,818
11,683,752

11,705,289

Other instruction

Business services
O&M ofp lant services
Pupil transportation
Central services
Other support services

4,687,028

4,47 1,057

4,687,028

4,47 1,057

22,830,329
8,808,255

22,202,918

22,830,329

15,392,237
94,557

13,483,74 1

9,249,970
15,392,237

8,808,255
13,483,74 1

109,6 14
81,523

94,557
74,702

109,6 14
81 ,523

114,987

11 4,987

95, 116
(2,654, 180)

(2,505,409)

Emp loyee benefit fund ing

Changes m net posation

203,751,359

2 10,536,823
$

14,681 ,287

$

11 ,849,622

95, 116

(2,505,409)

Nutrition services
Total expenses

1,259,463

22 ,202,918
9,249,970

74 ,702

Community services
Int eres t on long-term debt

24,409

$

(2,654, 180)

6,360,207

6,357, 196

6,360,207

6,357, 196

6,360,207

6,357, 196

216,897,030

2 I0, I08,555

1,000,887
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$

292,378

$

15,682,174

$

12,142,000

LARAMIE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. l
Management's Discussion and Analysis

Revenue and Expense per Pupil
2014
Revenue:
Program revenues
Taxes
Governmental aid
Miscellaneous
Total revenue per pupil
Expense per pupil
Student population

2013

1,364
2,200
13,163
28

$

$

16,755

$

602

$

15,838

$

348

1,305
2,246
13,766
40

$

$

17,357

$

16,186

$

13,400

Total change
2014-2013

13,266

(59)

46
603
12

134

Financial Analysis of the District's Funds
Governmental Funds:
Revenues
General Fund revenues increased from $189,144,709 in fiscal year 2013 to $192,550,221 in fiscal year 2014.
The District received additional State funding due to an increase in the transportation reimbursement for bus
leases paid off in the prior year. The District also received increased State funding for employee bonuses and
retirement reimbursement. Revenue from property taxes increased due to higher assessed values. In addition,
the District received higher than expected revenues from motor vehicle taxes.
Expenditures
The total expenditures of all governmental funds, on the modified accrual basis, were $209,61 0,843 in 2013
compared to $226, 177,715 in 2014. This increase is primarily due to expenditures for capital outlay increasing
from the prior year.

Proprietary Funds:
The total revenues of the Nutrition Services Fund increased approximately $712,000 from the prior year.
During 2014, transfers from the General fund increased for equipment purchases. ln addition, the amount
received from the Federal government for the food service program increased during 2014 due to increased
participation and increased reimbursement rates for providing healthier meals. The expenses incurred to provide
this program increased by approximately $3 ,000 from the prior year. The result was a loss before transfers of
($907,622) in 2013 compared to a loss before transfers of($699,113) in 2014.
Governmental Funds Budgetary Highlights
The District amended its original budget five times for the fiscal year ended June 30, 20 14. In October of 20 13,
the General Fund budget was increased by $50,000 in instruction, $20,000 in general support and $180,000 in
capital outlay in order to replace a modular at Arp Elementary School that was destroyed in a fire. In March of
2014, the Capital Construction budget was increased $19,000,000 for revenues and expenditures related to
additional contracts with the Wyoming School Facilities Commission primarily for the Davis replacement and
Meadowlark construction projects. In June of 2014, $300,000 of the General Fund instruction budget was
moved to non-instructional support to allow additional funds to be transferred to the Nutrition Services fund .
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The N utrition Services fund was increased by $300,000 in transfer revenue and $300,000 in federal revenue for
the increased support from General Fund and the summer feeding program. In addition, the Nutrition Services
budget for non-instructional support was increased by $600,000 for equipment purchases and the summer
feeding program . At this time the Grants Fund instruction budget was also increased by $500,000 for federal
and state grants over original budget estimates. T he Special Building instruction budget was increased $20,000
for the purchase of music uniforms for Central High School. The transfer budget was also increased by $5 ,000
to close out projects in Capital Construction . In July of 2014, $1,000,000 of the General fund general support
budget was moved to instruction to provide additional flexibility for year-end adjustments. ln the Grants Fund,
$175,000 of the general support budget was moved to instruction and $225,000 was moved to instructional
support also to allow for year-end adjustments. In addition, the Scholarship Fund budget was increased by
$3,000 in non-instructional support for additional scholarships paid out during the year. In September of 2014,
$10,000 of the Special Building capita l outlay budget was moved to general support for expenses reclass ified
after year end in preparing forth~ annual audit.
The General Fund revenues were $1,133 ,773 more than budgeted due to higher than projected receipts from
motor vehicle taxes and from the Department of Education for special education and transportation . The
District did not over expend its budget in any program area during the year ended June 30, 2014 in any major
fund .

Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital Assets
The District completed boiler replacements at Johnson, McCormick and Central , synthetic turf and shot put
renovation at South, various proj ects at the Transportation complex including electrical upgrades, office remodel
and a new storage building, renovation of the Eastridge wing of Carey, asphalt and concrete work at Anderson
and Johnson, irrigation system at Anderson, security cameras at Johnson, new roof and turning lane at Central
and flooring at East during 2014.
The District's investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of June 30, 2014 amounts to
$279,071 ,672 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, site
improvements, buildings and equipment (which includes vehicles and buses).
District's Capital Assets (Governmental Activities)
(Net of Accumulated Depreciation)
2014
2013
Land
$
9,984,324
$
7,879,842
Site improvements
18,296,172
17,600,146
Buildings
219,938,917
223,844,643
17,426,304
2,685,57 1
Construction in progres s
Software in progress
886,899
771 ,670
Equipment
12,289,364
11 ,370, 181
Software
249,692
Total

$

$ 264,152,053

279,071,672

Construction in progress at June 30, 201 4 includes the new Prairie Wind Elementary, new Okie Blanchard
stadium and field, Davis Elementary replacement, new Meadowlark Elementary, and various major maintenance
projects. Additional information on the District's capital assets can be found in Note 3 of this report.
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Long-Term Debt
The District incurred additional debt during the fiscal year ended June 30, 20 I 4 for copiers.
information on the District's long-term debt can be found in Note 5 ofthis report.

Additional

Factors Affecting the District's Future
The legislative action for 20 I 4-20 I 5 provides an estimated 1.0% external cost adjustment (ECA) of$ I ,222,487
resulting in the first increase since 2009-20 I 0. The update to health insurance funding is estimated at an
increase of $I ,020,942 for the 20 I4-20 I 5 school year.
Special Education and Transportation cost
reimbursement, including salaries and benefits, will increase due to increased costs. The reimbursement for
school buses will decrease as the District paid off several bus leases during fiscal year 2013 . The legislature
also provided additional appropriations (outside of the funding model) to offset cost increases in state retirement
estimated at$ I ,044, 750 and provide additional salary increases estimated at $836,000.
There is a mandatory average student-teacher ratio of not greater than I 6 to I in all K-3 classes. The District
received a waiver to this requirement from the Department of Education based on insufficient school capacity.
The district has started construction on Prairie Wind Elementary. Depending on student population growth, the
opening of Prairie Wind will help the district address capacity issues.
The PODER Academy charter school will be adding an additional grade level for 2014-20 I 5. Funding for the
year will be based on the October I count.
For fiscal year 20 I 5, the Legislature increased the required retirement contribution for employees by . 75% with
.375% being covered by additional state appropriations. Employees will pay an additional .625% toward their
retirement contribution . The required retirement contribution for employers will increase .5% which will also
be covered by additional state appropriations.
The District will need additional certified and classified staff as we address Junior High math issues, increased
student population and Davis Elementary student relocation to Carey Junior High during the construction
process. The District estimates these staffing and benefit changes will add $2,809,490 in additional payroll
costs. Negotiations have been completed and all contracts have been ratified by their respective members. The
board has authorized a 3% salary schedule increase and education advancements.
With regard to facilities, the Okie Blanchard Stadium replacement and Carey Junior High (Eastridge wing)
remodel for the relocation of Davis Elementary students should be complete by the start of the 20 I4-20 15
school year. The District has started construction of Prairie Wind Elementary and the new Davis Elementary.
Both schools are planned to open in August 20I5 . The District is currently in the planning and design phase of
the new Meadowlark Elementary which will be a 5-6 school and open in August 2016. Planning and design of
the Carey Junior High replacement school will also start during 2014-2015 . The State of Wyoming has not yet
appropriated construction funding for the Carey project, however, parking lots and infrastructure for the new
building were included in the Okie project. Property for future development may be considered for purchase
during the year.
Major Maintenance funding will increase for 20I4-2015 by $I,I 19,962 due to the Legislature fully funding the
Major Maintenance program in the first year of the biennium. The amount for 2014-20 I 5 also includes $90,000
for PODER lease costs.
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For 2014-2015, the Special Revenue Fund will no longer include the Teaching American History and Teacher
Evaluation grants which have reached the end of their grant approval.
The District continues to employ a wellness coordinator which is intended to slow the rising costs of health
msurance.
The District had an increase in enrollment of approximately 134 students at the end of fiscal year 2014.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and creditors with a general
overview of the District's finances as well as demonstrate accountability for funds the District receives.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information
shou ld be addressed to the Program Administrator of Finance, Mike Wiggam, 2810 House Ave., Cheyenne,
Wyoming 8200 I.
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LARAMIE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. I
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2014
Prima!l Government
Business-type
Activities

Governmental
Activities

Component Unit
PODER
Total

Academ~

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equ1valents
Cash wuh fiscal agent
lnvestmenas
Rece1vables
Property ta>.es, net of allowance
Accounts
Due from other govemmems
Accrued interest receivable
Internal balances
Inventory
Prepatd items
Total currena assets
Noncurrent assets
Land and construcllon and software m progress
Depreciable buildings, vehicles and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets

s

Total assets

s

6,815,008
993,968
68,573,890

s

2,270,552

s

9,085,560
993,968
68,573,890

116,635

33,171,870
48,744
6,700,247
1,195
3,104
32 1,253
19,262 703
135,891 982

{3,104)
352,559
2 374
2,757,069

673,812
19,265,077
138,649 051

6,694
366 337

28,297,527
350, 197.791
(99,423,646)
279,07 1 672

1,248,005
(575,445)
672,560

28,297,527
35 1,445,796
(99,999,09 1)
279,744 232

492,385
(123,096)
369,289

s

414,963,654

3,429,629

s

418,393,283

s

735 626

s

9,431,721
19,377,900
702,631
29,755
99 1,474
459,688
248,530
31,241 699

157,003
348,030

s

9,588,724
19,725,930
702,63 1
29,755
991,474
469,906
250,62 1
31 759,041

s

93,314
49,959

33,17 1,870
183,432
6,700,247
1, 195

134,688

243.008

LIABILITIES
Current hab1lit1es
Accounts payable
Accrued liablit1es
Due to external parties
Unearned revenue
Deposus held for others
Current portion of compensated absences
Current portion of capital lease obligations
Total current habiht1es
Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued rent
Noncurrena port ton of compensated absences
Noncurrent portion of cap1tallease obhgat1ons
Net pension and OPEB obhgation
Total noncurrent liabilttJes

$

10,2 18
2,091
517 342

143 273

182,584

Totalliabilit1es

2, 125,815
594 ,705
6,707,681
9,428,20 1
40 669,900

53,672
5,068
58 740

2, I 79,487
599,773
6,707,681
9,486 941

182,584

576 082

41,245,982

325,857

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable property taxes

32,940,300

32,940,300

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

278,228,437

Restrtcted for
Capital projects
Other purposes

278,893,838

4,959,320
656,283

Unrestncted
Total net pos1t1on
Total habtlities, deferred inflows of resources,
and net postt1on

665,401

s

369,289

4,959,320
656,283

57,509,414

2, 188,146

59.697,560

40,480

341,353,454

2,853,54 7

344,207,00 1

409,769

414,963,654

3,429,629

See Accompanying Notes to Fmancial Statements
II

s

4 18,393,283

$

735 626

LARAMIE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. I
STATEMENT Of ACTIVITIES
fo r the Year Ended June 30,2014

f unctions/Programs
Primary Government:
Governmental activities:
Instruction:
Regular rnstrucuon
Specral education rnstruction
Vocational education

Expenses

$

Support services·
Pupil servrces
Instructional staff servrces
General administration servrces
School admrnrstration services
Business services
Operation & maintenance of plant servrces
Puprl transportation servrces
Central services
Other support services
Communrty services
Interest on long term debt
Employee benefit funding
Total support services
Total governmental activities
Business-type activities:
Nutritron services

Component Unit:
PODER Academy

73,259,755
42,003, 146
3,871 ,847

$

414,301
1,715

$

3,641 ,215
2,083,678
I 94,829

4 16,016

5,919,722

17.290,329
I 1,892, 186
1,224,818
I 1,683,752
4,687,028
22,202,918
9,249,970
15,392,237
94,557
74,702
114,987
(2,505,409)

27,841

857,242
584,53 1
60,697
581 ,69 1
290,364
1,295,265
484,222
1,230,436
4,791
3,695

91 ,402,075

98,174

5.392,934

210,536,823

5 14, 190

11 ,312 656

6 360,207

1,992 665

3,665,254

119, 134,748

Total instruction

Total business-type activities
Total prrmary government

C harges for
Services

Program Revenues
Operating
Gra nts and
Contributions

$

6,360,207
216,897,030

$

1,932,963

22.480
45,633
2,220

1,992 665
2,506,855

$

$

30 90 1

3,665,254
14,977,910

Capital
G r a nts and
Contributions

$

$

256,760

General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Property taxes, levied for specific purposes:
Recreation mill
Federal, State and Local ard not restricted to specific purposes.
Federal
State Foundation Program
State, other
County
Local
Gain on sale of caprtal assets
Insurance proceeds
Interest and investment earnings
Mrscellaneous
Subtotal, general revenues
Transfers
Total general reven ues, transfers a nd special
items
C hanges in net position
Net positron, begmnrng of year
Prror perrod adjustment
Net posrtron, begrnn rng of year. as restated
Net position, end of year
See Accompanyrng Notes to Financial Statements
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Net (Expenses) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position
Prima!! Government
Business-type
Governmental
T otal
Activities
Activities

$

(1 12,799.0 10)

( 112,799,0 10)

( 16,405,246)
(11 ,307,655)
( 1, 164, 12 1)
( 11 ,102,061 )
(4,374, 184)
(20,862,020)
(8.763,528)
( 14,16 1,80 1)
(89,766)
(71 ,007)
(1 14,987)
2,505,409

( 16,405,246)
( 11,307,655)
(1 , 164, 121)
(11 , 102 ,061)
(4,374, 184)
(20,862,020)
(8,763 ,528)
( 14, 161 ,801)
(89,766)
(71 ,007)
( 11 4,987)
2,505.409

{85 ,9 1 0,967~

{85,9 10,967~

(198,709,977)

(198, 709,977)

(198,709,977)

$

$ (69,204,239)
(39,9 17,753)
(3,677,0 18)

$

(69,204,239)
(39,917,753)
(3 ,677,0 18)

Coml!onent Unit
PODER
Academy

(702,288~

{702,288~

(702,288)
(702,288)

( 199,4 12,265)

{702,288~

(1 ,645,302)

$

28,932,837

28,932,837

1, 158,250

1, 158,250

407,853
170,185,7 13
4,968,260
8,680,823
220,85 1
48,557
56,065
82,965
349,090
215,09 1,264

3, 175

407,853
170, 185,7 13
4,968,260
8,680,823
220 ,85 1
48,557
56,065
86, 140
349,090
215,094,439

1,566, 139

( 1,700,000)

1,700,000

1,566, 139

3, 175

213,391 ,264

1,703, 175

2 15,094 ,439

14,68 1,287

1,000,887

15,682, 174

326,672, 167

1,852,660

328,524 ,827

326,672, 167

1,852,660

328,524,827

2,853 ,547

$ 344,207,00 I

341.353,454

$

1,566, 139

(79, 163)
371 ,500
11 7 432
488,932

$

409,769
13

LARAMIE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. I
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2014
Major Funds
General
Fund

Special
Building
Fund

Grants
Fund

Other
Non-major
Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash with fiscal agent
In vestments
Rece1vables
Propeny taxes
Accounts
Due from other governments
Accrued mterest rece1vable
Due from other funds
Inventory
Prepaid items
Total assets

$

3,992.284
965.616
43.283,956

$

$

28,352
2,638,53 1

32,135,335
48,744

I ,421 ,976

$ 1.400.748

15,289,885

7,361,5 18

1,036,535
3,439,603

1,195
3,324,471
321,253
19,040,11 3
$

103, 112,967

3,260,644
1.882.751

5,765
$

7,1 48,786

385
2 16,825

$

18,594,612

$ 12,24 0,120

$

1,860,253

$ 2,595,6 15

LIABILITIES, DERERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
L1ab1liues·
Accounts payable
Accrued l1ab1lilles
Due to other funds
Uneamed revenue
Deposits held for others

$

4,738,845
17,725,790

s

237,008

I ,652, 11 0
I ,848.366

4,058,768
28,636

991 ,474

Totalliabihues

22,464,635

5,976,522

Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable propeny taxes
Unavailable rcce1vables

31 ,945,603

1,030,502
874,941

455,883

Total deferred mflows of resources

3 1,945,603

1,905,443

455,883

321,253
19,040,113

5,765

216,825

Fund balances
Nonspendable
lnventones
Prepaid items
Restricted for
Grants
CCRD projects
Major mamtenance projects
Capital projects
Commined to
Driver's education reserve
Music uniform reserve
Equipment reserve
Career and technical educauon reserve
Future land purchases
D1stnct enhancements
Assigned
Unass1gned

3,687,237
25.654 ,126

(1.085,076)

Total fund balances

48,702,729

(733,1792

Total habiliues, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances

1,860,253

5,435,455

346. 132

I ,389 ,462
5,233.563
17,088,570
50,536
170,403
6,158,462
19,832
2,355.757
7,979,369

$

103 ,112,967

$

7,148,786

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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( 17,579,638)

$

16,734,359

6,348,782

18,594,612

$ 12.240.120

To1a l
Govern menial
Funds

$

6,8 15,008
993,968
68,573,890
33, 171.870
48,744
6,700,247
1,195
5 207,607
321 ,253
19 ,262,703

s

141 ,096,485

$

9,431 ,72 1
19.377,900
5,907,134
28,636
99 1,474
35,736,865

32,976,105
1,330,824
34,306,929

32 1,253
19,262.703
346,132
1,389,462
5,233,563
17,088,570
50,536
170,403
6, 158,4 62
19,832

2,355,157
7,979,369
3.687,237
6,989,412
71,052,691

s

141 ,096,485

See Accornpanym~ Notes to Financ1al Statements
IS

LARAMIE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. I
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014
Major Funds
General
Fund
Revenues
Taxes
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Indirect cost reimbursement
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

$

Total revenues
Expenditures
Current:
Instruction:
Regular
Special education
Vocational education
Support services:
Pupil services
Instructional staff services
General administration services
School administration services
Busmess services
Operation & maintenance of plant services
Pupil transportation services
Central services
Other support services
Community services
Employee benefit fundi ng
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Prmcipal
Interest and other charges

29,023, 135
162,148,296
5 14,190
461 ,091
55,919
347,590

Special
Building
Fund

Gra nts
Fund

$

1, 158,250
17,320,26 1

$

Other
Non-major
Funds

$

13,220

16,2 12,619

4,331
220,851

17,725
1,500

4,988

192,550,221

18,703,693

32,445

16,217,607

72,599,234
33 ,679,309
3,7 10,207

823 ,706
8,32 1,218
11 7,705

16,784,696
5,903,875
1,226,988
11 ,617,633
4,377, 137
20,809,296
8,060,410
5,237,652
86,792
933
(2,505,409)
3,405,656

544,283
5,905,6 15

18,800

5, 128 ,294

14 1, 128
46 1,091
5,553
92, 173
72,907
192,578

862
8,515,661

10,505,698

15,634,854

201 ,905
104, 167

19, 142
10,820

185,300,481

16,707,919

8,534,46 1

7,249,740

1,995,774

(8,502,0 16}

582,753

Other finan cing sources (uses)
Operating transfers in (out)
Proceeds from capital leases
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Proceeds from insurance
Total other financing sources (uses)

(3,799,045)
888,213
50,035
56,065
(2,804,732}

( 1, 155,555)
93 ,532

3,974,679

(720,079)

( 1,062,023}

3,974,679

(720,079}

Net change in fund balances

4,445,008

933,75 1

(4,527,337)

( 137,326)

44 ,257,721

( 1,666,930}

21 ,26 1,696

(733, 179}

$ 16,734,359

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balances, July I, 20 13
Fund balances, June 30, 20 14

$

48,702 ,729

$

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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6,486, 108
$

6,348,782

Total
Govtrnmental
fund s

$

30, 18 1,385
195,694,396
5 14, 190
461 ,09 1
82,963
569,941
227,503,966

73,422,940
42,000,527
3,827,9 12
17,328,979
I 1,809,490
I ,226,988
I 1,758,761
4,838,228
25,96 I ,943
8,060,41 0
5,329,825
86,792
74,702
(2,505,409)
22,619,593
22 1,047
I 14,987
226, 177,715
1,326,25 I

(I , 700,000)
98 1,745
50,035
56 065
~612 , 1552

714,096
70,338,595
$

7 1,052,69 1

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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LARAMIE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. J
RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES TO
NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
June 30, 2014

Total Governmental Fund Balances

$

7 1,052,691

Amounts reported for governmen1al activities in the statement of net position are
different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore arc not reported in the funds.
Long-term li abilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore
are not reported in the funds.
Capital lease obligations
Compensated absences
Net pension and OPEB obligation
Property tax recievables that do not provide current financial resources are offset
by deferred inOows of resources in the funds.
Intergovernmental recei vables that do not provide current financial resources are offset
by deferred in Oows of resources in the fu nds.
Net Position of Governmental Activities

279,07 1,672

(843,235)
(2,585,503)
(6,707,681 )

34,686

1,330,824
$ 341 ,353,454

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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LARAMIE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRJCT NO. J
RECONCJLIA TION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30,20 14

Net change in fund balances- total governmental funds

$

7 14,096

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is a llocated
over their estimated useful li ves as depreciation expense. Thi s is the amount
by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.
Total capitalized assets
Amount of depreciation expense for the year

25,773,753
( I0,852,656)
14,921,097

Repayment of capital lease principal is an expenditure in the governmental
fund s, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the
statement of net position, as follows:
Total of capital leases issued during the year
Reduction to principal of capital leases

(98 1,746)
22 1,047
(760,699)

Governmental funds do not report gains and losses o n sales or retirements of fi xed assets .
However, the statement of activites reports these amounts.

( I ,478)

The change in the liability for compensated absences is not reponed
in the governmental funds, but reduces the liability in the
statement of net position.

106,352

Property tax revenues in the statement of acti vities that do no t provide current
finan cial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

(90,298)

Intergovernmental revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
finan cial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

(600,179)

The change in the liabi lity for net pension and OPEB obligation is not reported
in the governmental funds, but decreases the liability in the
statement of net position.

392,396

Change in net position of governmental activiti es

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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$

14,681 ,287

LARAMIE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. I
BALANCE SHEET
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2014

Business-type
Activities Enterprise Fund
Nutrition
Services
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash
Receivables:
Accounts
Inventory
Prepaid items

$

2,270,552
I 34,688
352,559
2,374
2,760, 173

Total current assets
Capital assets:
General equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

1,248,005
(575,445)

Total capita l assets

672,560

Total assets

$

3,432, 733

$

157,003
348,030
3, 104
10,2 18
2,091

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabil ities
Due to other funds
Compensated absences
Capita l lease obligations
Total current liab lities

520,446

Noncurrent liabi lities:
Compensated absences
Capital lease obligations

53 ,672
5,068

Total noncurrent li ablit ies

58,740

Total liabilities

579, 186

NET POSITION
665,401
2, 188, 146

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

2,853,547

Total net position
Total liabil ities and net position

$

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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3,432,733

LARAMIE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. I
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN
FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For th e Year Ended June 30, 2014

Business-type
Activities Enterprise Fund
Nutrition
Services
Operating revenues:
Charges for services

$

Total operating revenues

1,992,665
1,992,665

Operating expenses:
Salaries
Fringe benefits
Purchased services
Materials and supplies
Direct food costs
Other expenses
Depreciation

2,028,471
I, 195,208
75 ,075
270,064
2,694,667
203
96,5 19
6,360,207

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

(4,367,542)

Nonoperating revenues:
Donated commodities
Operating grants
Interest reven ue

325,042
3,340,212
3, 175

Total nonoperating revenues

3,668,429

Income (Joss) before transfers

(699, 11 3)
1,700,000

Transfers in (out)
Change in net position

1,000,887

Total net position, July l, 2013
Total net position, June 30,2014

1,852,660
$

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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2,853,547

LARAMIE COUNTY SCHOOL DI STRI CT NO. I
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended J une 30,2014

Business-type
ActivitiesEnterprise Fund
Nutrition
Services
Cash Oows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Payments for fringe benefits
Payments to suppliers

$

(4,250,225)

Net cash used by operating activities
Cash Oows from noncapital financing activities :
Ope rating grants
Transfers in (out)

3,330,006
1,700,000

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

5,030,006

Cash Oows from capital and related fin ancing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets
Principal payments on capital lease obligation

( 118,593)
( I ,842)
( 120,435)

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities
Cash n ows from investing activities :
Interest revenue

3, 175
3, 175

Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

662,521

Cash and cash equivalents, July I, 20 13
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2014
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
used by operating activities:
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss
to net cash used by operating activities:
Commodity subsidy
Depreciation
Change in assets and liabilities:
Inventory
Prepaids
Accounts payab le
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Compensated absences
Net cash used by operating activities

2,0 10,850
{2,3 10,08 1)
( 1, 196, 138)
(2,754,856)

1,608,03 1

$

2,270,552

$

(4 ,367.542)

325,042
96,5 19
(65,4 13)
(4)
40,825
( 11 ,7 14)
(268,388)
450

$

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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(4,250,2252

LARAMIE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. I
STATEMENT OF F IDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2014
Other
Employee
Benefits

Private
Purpose
Trust

Agency
Funds

ASSETS
$

Cash
Due from other funds
In vestments

244,816
709,605

$

$

841 ,009

$ 399,656

$

841 ,009

$

$

83 1,624

11 ,9 15
387,741

$

Total assets

954,421

LIABILITIES
$

Due to student groups
Due to other funds
Accounts payab le

6,974
9,385
6,974

Tota11iabilities
NET POSITION
$

Held in trust for employee benefits and other purposes

954,42 1

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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$ 392,682

$

841 ,009

LARAMIE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRJCT NO. I
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30,2014

Other
Employee
Benefits

Private
Purpose
Trust

Additions:

Contributions - others
Interest
Miscellaneous

$

$

!50
400,000

Total additions

3,534
2,753

6,287

400, ! 50

Deductions:

Scholarships
Central services

6,974
165,915

Total deductions

165,915

Change in net position

234,235

(687)

720, 186

Net position, July I , 201 3
Net position, June 30, 2014

6,974

$

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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954,42 1

393 ,369

$

392,682

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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LARAMIE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. J
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Reporting Entity
The Board of Trustees (Board), a seven-member group, has governance responsibilities over all activities related
to public elementary and secondary school education within the jurisdiction of Laramie County School District
No. I (District). The Board is elected by the public and has the exclusive power and duty to govern and oversee
the management of the public schools of the District. The District receives funding from local, state and federal
government sources and must comply with the requirements of those funding entities. However, the District
serves as the nucleus for the reporting entity for its financial statements. The District is not included in any
other governmental " reporting entity" as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).
As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial
statements present the District and its component units, for which the District is considered to be financially
accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate units, are, in substance, part of the District's
operations and so data from these units are combined with data of the primary government. The discretely
presented component unit, on the other hand, is reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial
statements to emphasize it is legally separate from the District.
Blended Component Unit - The Cheyenne Community Recreation District (CCRD) provides funding to the
Cheyenne community for recreation projects, which may include facilities, construction, programs and
equipment. The Board appoints all five members of CCRD's Governing Board . CCRD is fiscally dependent on
the District because the District's Board must approve annually a one mill levy which provides CCRD's
funding. CCRD is reported as a special revenue fund. The component unit has a June 30 year end.
Discretely Presented Component Unit - The PODER Academy is a legally separate charter school served by a
Board of Trustees. PODER is responsible for the development of curriculum, hiring and termination of staff,
budget adoption, authorization of expenditures, and the financing of deficits. Transportation and Nutrition
Services are contracted through the District. Based on the significant resources and services provided by the
District, as well as the ultimate responsibility for the education of the students, PODER is presented as a
component unit of the District. The component unit has a June 30 year end. Separately issued financial
statements can be obtained from PODER Academy.

Basis ofPresentation
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities)
report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component unit. For
the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities,
w hich normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from businesstype activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment
are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include: I) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.
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LARAMIE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30,2014

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Basis of Presentation (Continued)
The fund financial statements provide information about the District's funds, with separate statements presented
for each fund category. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds, each
displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as non-major
funds.
Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated
with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives
up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from
non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.
The District reports the following major governmental funds :
The General Fund is the District 's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
The Grants Fund accounts for federal , state and local grants and other resources whose use is restricted for a
particular purpose.
The Special Building Fund accounts for resources received from other funds and outside sources which are used
to fund miscellaneous capital projects. In addition, this fund accounts for resources received from other funds
which are used to fund various reserves.
The other governmental funds of the District account for other resources whose use is restricted to a particular
purpose.
In addition, the District reports the following fund types:
Proprietary Funds - Proprietary funds focus on the determination of the changes in net position, financial
position and cash flows . The District's proprietary fund includes an enterprise fund . Enterprise funds may be
used to account for any activity for which a fee is charged to external users for goods or services. The District's
enterprise fund is the Nutrition Services Fund which accounts for the financial transactions related to the food
service operations of the District.
Fiduciary Funds
Employee Benefits Fund - This fund is used to account for amounts received that are to be used solely for
wellness benefits for District employees.
Private-Purpose Trust Fund - This fund is used to account for donations for scholarship funds that are received
by the District that are to be awarded to current and former students for post-secondary education purposes.
Agency Fund - The Agency Fund accounts for resources held in a custodial capacity by the District and consists
of funds that are the property of students and student groups.
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Note J. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds, even
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental
funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.
The government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus. The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported
using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Non-exchange transactions, in which the
District receives value without directly giving equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants and
donations. On an accrual basis, property taxes are recognized as revenues at the levy date. Grants and similar
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
generally recognized when they become both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be
available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the District considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60
days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are generally recorded as the liabilities are incurred, if
measurable.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund ' s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the District's enterprise
fund are food service charges to students and faculty. Operating expenses for the enterprise fund include the
cost of food sold, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets . All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity

Cash and Investments
Cash consists of demand deposit accounts, money market accounts and petty cash . Investments are carried at
fair value and consist primarily of certificates of deposit and investments in external investment pools.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the District considers all highly liquid investments with a
maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Cash with Fiscal Agent
Cash with fiscal agent in the General and Grants Funds represents property taxes collected and held by the
Laramie County Treasurer which have not been remitted to the District at June 30.
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity (Continued)

Inventories
Inventories are stated using first-in, first-out for the Enterprise Fund and the General Fund. All inventories are
accounted for using the consumption method by which inventory acquisitions are recorded in inventory accounts
when purchased or received by other means and are charged to expense when consumed or sold .

Accounts Receivable
The District considers all accounts receivable to be fully collectible at June 30, 2014 and, therefore no allowance
for doubtful accounts is deemed necessary. There are no rece ivables in excess of90 days past due.

Interfund Balances
On the fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans are
class ified as " Due from other funds/Due to other funds". These amounts are eliminated in the governmental and
business-type activities columns of the statement of net position, except for the net residual amounts due
between governmental and business-type activities.

Capital Assets
General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the proprietary fund .
These assets generally result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are reported in the
governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net position but are not reported in the
fund financial statements. Capital assets utilized by the proprietary fund are reported both in the business-type
activities co lumn of the government-wide statement of net position and in the respective fund .
All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available.
Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the date donated. The District maintains a
capitalization threshold of $100,000 for buildings, $50,000 for site improvements and software, and $5,000 for
equipment and vehicles. The District does not possess any infrastructure. Improvements are capitalized; the
costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset's
life are not.
All reported capital assets, except land, construction in progress and software in progress, are depreciated.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:
Bui lding and improvements
Equipment and vehicles
Software

I 0-5 0 years
5-10 years
3 years
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity (Continued)
Compensated Absences
Compensated absences are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned if the employees' rights to receive
compensation are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the District will compensate the
employees for the benefits through paid time off or some other means, such as payment for un used accumulated
vacation leave upon termination of services. As the District does not liquidate their liability for compensated
absences until leave is actually taken or the employee terminates, no expenditure or liability is recorded in the
governmental funds until they are paid or, in the case of termination payments for unused leave, due for
payment. However, on the government-wide financial statements, the expenditure and related liability are
recorded.
Vacation leave is granted with pay to all employees working on a twelve-month basis as specified in negotiated
agreements between recognized representatives of the employee units and the Board. All vacation time is
cumulative and may be carried into subsequent years in accordance with negotiated agreements. Any vacation
accrued at separation shall be paid at that time.
Sick leave and leave for personal circumstances with pay, not connected with sick leave, are granted to
employees at various terms and rates according to the negotiated agreements for each unit. Sick leave may be
accrued from year to year by employees without limit; however, employees are not compensated for unused sick
leave upon termination of employment, except employees who retire after ten consecutive years of full-time
employment with the district immediately prior to separation. Sick leave is paid from $20-$40 per day,
dependent on the number of unused sick days, for unused sick leave up to a maximum of 250 days. Sick leave
is paid at the daily rate for the Superintendent and Assistant Superintendents.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations
All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide financial
statements, and all payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations payable from proprietary funds are
reported on the proprietary fund financial statements.
Payables and accrued liabilities that will be paid from governmental funds are generally reported on the
governmental fund financial statements regardless of whether they will be liquidated with current resources.
However, c laims and judgments that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund
financial statements only to the extent that they will be paid with current, expendable, available financial
resources. Liabilities that mature or come due for payment during the fiscal year are generally considered to
have been made with current available financial resources. Long-term capital leases that will be paid from
governmental funds are recognized as a liability in the fund financial statements when due.

Fund Balance
The District reports fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements in one of the following five
categories. Nonspendable fund balance represents amounts that are not in spendable form which for the District
includes inventories and prepaid amounts. Restricted fund balance represents amounts constrained to a specific
purpose by their providers, through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation. Committed fund
balance represents amounts constrained to a specific purpose by the Board of Trustees through a formal motion.
Amounts reported as committed cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board of Trustees makes
another formal motion.
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Note I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity (Continued)

Fund Balance (Continued)
Assigned fund balance represents amounts constrained by the District's intent to use them for a specific purpose.
According to the District's fund balance policy, intent will be expressed through items such as a statement by
the Board of Trustees, Superintendent or Budget Officers. Unassigned fund balance represents amounts that
have not been restricted, committed or assigned to a specific purpose.
The District has a fund balance policy that states that when both restricted and unrestricted (committed,
assigned, and unassigned) resources are available for a given expenditure, the District will consider restricted
funds to have been used first. It is also the policy of the District that unrestricted funds will be used in the
following order: committed, assigned, and unassigned.
Encumbrances are amounts needed to pay any commitments related to purchase orders and contracts that remain
unperformed at year-end. The District's encumbrances have been included within fund balance and are as
follows:
General Fund (Assigned)
G-ants Fund (Res tricted )
Special Building Fund (Committed)
Non-major Funds (Restricted)
Total encumbrances

$

3,687,237
346,132
6,014,086
20,741,795

$
30,789,250
=========

Net Position
Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net position reported as net investment in
capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of
any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net position is reported
as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use through the enabling legislation adopted by the
District or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other
governments. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District's policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Property Taxes
Property is annually valued and assessed January I. Taxes are levied on or about August I and payable in two
installments on September I and March I. The County bills and collects its own property taxes and also taxes
for all municipalities and political subdivisions within the County, including Laramie County School District
No. I . If not paid, property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of May II . District property tax
revenues are recognized when levied to the extent that they result in current receivables, which means when
collected within the current period or expected to be collected within 60 days of the fiscal year end to be used to
pay liabilities of the current period on the fund financi al statements. Property taxes which are not current
receivables are offset as deferred inflows of resources on the fund financials, but are reported on the
government-wide financial statements as revenue and receivables, with no amount being deferred when levied.
Property taxes receivable reported on the fund financials and on the government-wide financial statements are
both shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts in the amount of$233,375, at June 30,2014. Property
taxes receivable of $32,940,300 for the fiscal year 2014 is reported on the government wide financial statement
and the fund financial statements and is inc luded as deferred inflows of resouces.
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Note I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity (Continued)

Property Taxes (Continued)
The District is required by Wyoming Statutes to levy taxes of twenty-five mills of assessed valuation for all
school purposes, exclusive of bond interest and redemption. ln addition, a county-wide school property tax of
six mills and a recreation district tax for one mill are levied. The combined tax rate to finance general school
services other than the payment of principal and interest on long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2014 was
thirty-two mills.

Deficit Fund Balance
The following funds had a deficit balance at June 30, 2014:
Grants Fund
Capital Projects Fund

$
$

(733, 179)
(274,243)

These fund deficits are due to requests for reimbursements not meeting the availability requirement.

Accounting Estimates
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period.
Actual amounts could differ from those estimates.

Note 2. Cash and Investments
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2014 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:
Statement of net position :
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Fiduciary funds :
Cash
In ves tments
Total cash and investments

$

9,085,560
68,573,890
1,097,740
387,741

$

79, 144,931

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2014 consist of the following:
Cas h on hand
Deposits with fmancial institutions
Certificates of deposit
Investments
WGW
Total cash and investments

$

2,660
10,180,640
490,628
68,471 ,003

$

79, 144,931
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Note 2. Cash and Investments (Continued):

Investments Authorized by the District's Investment Policy:
The District follows the guidelines set forth in Wyoming State Statute 9-4-831 as it relates to the investment of
public funds. The Statute and District policies generally allow the District to invest in U.S ., state and local
government securities and accounts of any bank and savings associations which are federally insured. Stocks
and bonds of private corporations as well as reverse repurchase agreements are a prohibited investment means
for the District. The policy allows investment in shares in a diversified money market fund with a stable share
value of one dollar ($1.00). All investments made during the year were made within these statutory limits. The
District' s investment policy does not contain any specific provisions intended to limit the District' s exposure to
interest rate risk, credit risk and concentration of credit risk.
The District's investment activity is conducted in one local government investment pool. The Wyoming
Government Investment Fund (WGIF) was established pursuant to the Wyoming Statutory Trust Act. Shares of
this fund are offered exclusively to Wyoming governmental entities. The fair value of the District's position in
this fund is the same as the value of the pool shares.

Credit risk: Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization. Under investment agreement with WGlF, the District has invested monies at a fixed
contract rate of interest. The WGIF fund continues to hold an AAAm rating by Standard & Poor' s (" S&P")
indicating that "safety is excellent," and the pool has " superior capacity to maintain principal value and limit
exposure to loss."
Custodial credit risk: Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, the District will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Deposits held in District bank accounts are insured by
Federal depository insurance or are collateralized with securities held by the custodian bank under safekeeping
or federal reserve receipts in the name of the District and the financial institution in accordance with Wyoming
State Statutes and District policy. As of June 30, 2014, the primary government had balances in the bank of
$14,798,855, which were fully collateralized or insured. As of June 30, 2014, the Cheyenne Community
Recreation District, a blended component unit of the District, had balances in the bank of $41 ,327, which was
fully insured .
The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g.,
broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral
securities that are in the possession of another party. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally
applies only to direct investments in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local
government' s indirect investment in securities through the use of government investment pools.

Concentration of credit risk: The District does not have a formal policy regarding the concentration of credit
risk . The investment in WGlF represents 100% of the total investments ofthe District.
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Note 2. Cash and Investments (Continued):

Interest rate risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair
value to changes in market interest rates.
The WGIF' s investment policy limits its exposure to market value fluctuations due to changes in interest rates
by requiring that the Fund's portfolio maintain a dollar-weighted average maturity of less than sixty days. The
weighted average maturity of the Fund 's entire portfolio at June 30, 2014 was 54 days.
Discretely Presented Component Unit:

Custodial credit risk: Custodial risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depos itory
financial institution, PODER will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Certain deposits held in PODER bank accounts are
insured by Federal depository insurance or are collateralized with securities held by the custodian bank, Federal
Reserve receipts in the name of PODER and the financial institution, or other obligations issued or guaranteed
by a Federal Government agency in PODER's name. As of June 30, 2014, PODER had bank balances on
deposit of $128,581. These deposits were fully collateralized at June 30, 2014.
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Note 3. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 20 I 4 was as follows:
Balance
Jun e 30,
2013
GovernmentJtl activities
Capital asset s, not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress
Software in progress
Total capital as sets, not being depreciated

$

Capital asset s, being depreciated:
Site improvements
Buildings
Equipment
Software
Total capital as sets, being depreciated

Additions

7,879,842
2,685,571
771,670
11 ,337,083

25,089,310
288,968, I 13
27,680,465

7,489, 164
65,123,470
16,310,284

Total capital as sets , being depreciated, net

$

(5,347,499)
(370,689}
(5,7 18, 188)

9,984,324
17,426,304
886,899
28,297,527

26,905,064
292,507,657
30,458,676
326,394
350,197,791

(353,406)
(353,406)

88,922,918

(35 1,928)

8,608,892
72,568,740
18,169,312
76,702
99,423,646

252,814,970

(2,039,347)

( 1,478)

250,774, 145

$

264,152,053

Business-type activities
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Equ ipment

$

1,120,411

641 ,485
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(351 ,928)

$ 20,639,285

$

127,594

$

$

478,926
$

$

1,119,728
7,445,270
2,210,956
76,702
10,852,656

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Less accumulated depreciation for:

2,104,482
20,088,232
485,918
22,678,632

1,815,754
3,539,544
3,131 ,617
326,394
8,813,309

341 ,737,888

Less accumu lated depreciation for:
Site improvements
Buildings
Equ ipment
Software
Total accumulated depreciation

Business-type activities capital assets. net

$

Balance
June 30,
2014

Deletions /
Transfers

(5,719,666)

$

279,071,672

$

1,248,005

96,519
$

31 ,075

575,445
$

$

672,560
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Note 3. Capital Assets (Continued)
Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:
$

Regular instruction
Special education instru ction
Vocationa l education instruction
Pupil services
In struct ional staff services
Business services
Operation & maintenance of plant services
Pupil transportation services
Other s uppo rt services
Central services

$

Total

55,053
80,552
52,130
1,739
130,180
304,771
332,630
1, 160, 116
7,861
8,727,624
10,852,656

Construction Commitments
The construction in progress represents construction related to improvements at various schools. Actual s igned
and unexpended contracts for these and other miscellaneous projects at June 30, 2014 approximate $ 19,750,665
and will be funded by the Capital Projects and Special Building funds. In addition, subsequent to June 30, 2014,
the District signed an additional construction contract for approximately $11,363,000 to rebuild Davis
Elementary School.
Discretely Presented Component Unit: Capita l asset activity for the year ended June 30, 20 14 was as follows:
Balance
June 30,
2013
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Additions
$

$

$

123,259
123,259

Balance
June 30,
20 14

Deletions/
Transfers

369,126
369,126

$
(492,3852
(492,385)

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Leasehold improvements
Total capital assets, being depreciated

492,385
492,385

492,385
492,385

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Leasehold improvements
Total accumulated depreciation

123,096
123 ,096

123,096
123,096

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

369,289

369,289

Capital assets, net

$

123,259

$

738,415

$

(492,385)

$

369,289

The leasehold improvements are associated with the building lease discussed in Note 8. As the lease may be
terminated in June 20 15, the estimated useful life extends up to the potential termination date.
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Note 4. Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers

The composition of due to/from other funds as of June 30, 20 14 are as follows:
Due From
Governmental fund s :
General fund
Gants fund
Major maintenance fund
Capital projects fund
Special building fund
Recreation board fund

$

Due To

3,324,471

$

4,058,768
385
1,626,788
1,882,751
22 1,578

Proprietary funds:
Nutrition services fund

3,104

Fiduciary fund s:
Other employee benefits fund
Private purpose trust fund

709,605
6,974
$

5,917,212

$

5,917,212

The balances in interfund receivables and payables resulted from the time lag between the dates that (I)
interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in
the accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made.
lnterfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2014 are as follows:
Transfers In
General fund
Gants fund
Capital projects fund
Special building fund
Recreation board fund
Enterprise flmd

Transfers Out
3,799,045
1,155,555

4,482
3,974,679
724,561
1,700,000
$

5,679,161

$

5,679,161

Transfers are used to (I) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund
that statute or budget requires to expend them and (2) use unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to
finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.
During the year ended June 30, 2014 the District made transfers from the General Fund in the amount of
$2,000,000 to the Special Building Fund to provide enhancements related to ongoing facility construction.
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Note 5. Capital Leases and Compensated Absences
The District has entered into various leases which contain termination provisions in the event funds are not
appropriated . Since the leases provide for transfer of title to the District upon completion of payments and
exercise of a bargain purchase option, they have been classified as capital leases. The cost of assets acquired
through capital leases existing as of June 30, 2014 is $1 , I 00,268.

Transportation Equipment
As of June 30, 2014, the District had one outstanding lease payable through fiscal year ending June 30, 2017
with an interest rate of 1.65%. The District has accounted for these transactions as capital leases.
Following is a schedule by year of anticipated lease payments under the capital leases, as of June 30, 2014:

Year Ending June 30,

Imputed
Interes t

Principal

2015
2016
201 7

Total

$

20,463
20,801
21 , 141

$

1,030
692
349

$

21 ,493
21 ,493
21 ,490

$

62,405

$

2,071

$

64,476

The capital lease obligations for the transportation equipment are paid through the General Fund .

Copiers
During the year ending June 30, 2014 the District entered into three leases for the purchase of copiers. These
leases are to be paid over a four year period beginning in 2014 . As of June 30, 2014, the District had three
outstanding lease payables through fiscal year ending June 30, 2017 with an interest rate of 12.743%. The
District has accounted for these transactions as capital leases.
Following is a schedule by year of anticipated lease payments under the capital leases, as of June 30, 2014:

Year Ending June 30,
201 5
2016
2017

Principal
Governmental
Enterprise

Imputed Interest
Governmental
Enterprise

Total

$
$
$

228,067
258,888
293,875

$
$
$

2,091
2,374
2,694

$
$
$

86,484
55,663
20,677

$
$
$

793
510
190

$ 317,435
$ 317,435
$ 317,436

$

780,830

$

7,159

$

162,824

$

1,493

$ 952,306

The capital lease obligations for the copiers are paid through the General, Grants, and Nutrition Services Funds.
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Note 5. Capital Leases and Compensated Absences (Continued)
Long-tenn liability activity within governmental and business type activities for the year ended June 30, 2014
was as follows:
Capital Leases
Governmental
Enterpris e
Balance, June 30, 2013
Additions
Reductions

$

82,536
981,746
(221 ,047)

Balance, June 30, 2014

$

843,235

Current Portion

$

248,530

$

Compensated Absences
Governmental
Enterprise

$

2,691 ,855
435,033
(541 ,385)

$

63,441
13,827
(13,378)

7, 159
=$========

$

2,585,503

$

63,890

2,091
=$=-=====

$

459,688

$

10,2 18

9,001
(1 ,842)

Note 6. Retirement Plan
The District contributes to the Wyoming Retirement System (System), a statewide cost-sharing multipleemployer public employee retirement system administered by the State of Wyoming Retirement System Board.
The System provides retirement, disability and death benefits according to predetermined formulas. Benefits are
established by Title 9, Chapter 3 of the Wyoming Statutes. The System issues a publicly available financial
report that includes audited financial statements and required supplementary infonnation for the System. The
report may be obtained by writing to the Wyoming Retirement System, 610 I Yellowstone Rd., Suite 500,
Cheyenne, Wyoming 82002.
Through August 31,2013, plan members were required to contribute 7. 0% of their annual covered salary and
the District was required to contribute 7. 12% ofthe annual covered payroll. Beginning September 1, 2013, plan
members are required to contribute 7.5% of their annual covered salary and the District is required to contribute
7.12% of the annual covered payroll. Legislation enacted in 1979 allows the employer to pay any or all of the
employees' contribution in addition to the matching contribution. However, under the State of Wyoming
funding model, the District is only reimbursed for paying up to a 5.57% employee contribution. Through
August 31, 2013, the District elected to only pay 5.57% of annual covered salary on behalf of the employees
with the other 1.43% being paid by the employees. Beginning September 1, 2013, the District elected to pay
6.07% of annual covered salary on behalf of the employees with the other I .43% being paid by the employees.
In addition to the 5.57% employee contribution reimbursed through the State of Wyoming funding model, the
District is also able to request reimbursement from the State of Wyoming for an additional .25% for all General
Fund, Special Education, Transportation, Instructional Facilitators and Summer School employees.
Contribution rates are established by Title 9, Chapter 3 of the Wyoming Statutes. The District's contributions to
the System for the years ending June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were $15,645,922, $14,349,449, and$ 14,653 ,101
respectively, which equaled I 00% of the required contributions for each year.
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Note 7. Risk Management
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets,
errors and omissions, injuries to employees and natural disasters. During the year ended June 30, 20 I 4, the
District contracted with various insurance companies for property insurance (including boiler and machinery),
general liability insurance, professional insurance and vehicle insurance. The coverage under each type of
insurance policy varies in amount and deductible.
As of July I, 2006, the District utilizes a Contingent Premium program through Blue Cross Blue Shield of
Wyoming which is accounted for in the General Fund. Under this program the District pays a monthly claims
funding amount into the plan. This amount is based on a 90/ 110 Contingent Premium program for the period
July I, 2006 through June 30, 2015 with settlement on the total nine year period to include all claims. In the
event of termination of the plan at the end of the contract period, gains will be paid to the District and losses will
be due from the District up to I 0% of the total claims funding for the nine year period of the contract.
The nine year payment plan included an automatic increase in premiums during the second year of I 0% and a
funding formula which computes the premiums for years three through nine based on prior year claims incurred
but not reported. The estimated incurred but unreported claims recorded as of June 30, 2014 is $600,000. As of
June 30, 2014 , sufficient premiums had been collected to cover the estimate for incurred but unreported claims
resulting in a gain to the District of $17, 197,820, which is equal to I 0% of total claims funding for the contract
period to date. This gain has been included in prepaid items as of June 30, 2014.
The District currently reports all of its risk management activities in its General Fund. Claims expenditures and
Iiabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be reasonably
estimated .
The District has not had significant settlements exceeding insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal
years. The District has had no significant reductions in insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year.

Note 8. Operating Leases
The District entered into a one year lease agreement for the building that houses the East High CLAS program
in August of2013 for the period August 1, 2013 through July 31,2014. The lease agreement requires annual
payment of $24,700. In addition, the District entered into a four year lease agreement for a postage meter in
March of 2014 for the period May I , 20 I 4 through April 30, 2018. The lease agreement requires monthly
payments of $745 . These leases are reported as operating leases and accordingly not capitalized. As of June 30,
20 I 4 , all payments for the leases were current.

39

LARAMIE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30,2014

Note 8. Operating Leases (Continued)
Discretely Presented Component Unit:
PODER has an existing operating lease for land and a building which serves as the operating location of the
charter school. The lease is to be paid over a 74 month period beginning in June of2013. However, due to the
ability of PODER to tenninate the lease in the event PODER fails to obtain its re-charter certification in July of
201S, the lease tennis considered to be 26 months beginning in June of2013. In the event oftennination ofthe
lease, PODER will be subject to penalties which have been included in the calculation of the monthly rent
expense of $19, 7SO on a straight-line basis through July of 20 I S under the accrual basis of accounting. Monthly
rent payments, excluding the estimated tennination penalties, under the operating lease through July of 20 IS are
as follows:
June 2013 - July 2013
$S,OOO
August 2013 - July 2014
$S,833
August 2014 - July 201S
$7,SOO
ln the event the lease is not terminated, the lease will extend to July of 2019, at which point monthly lease
payments will escalate to $26,667 in August of20IS through July of2019 . A bargain purchase option will also
become available upon completion of payments in July of2019.

Note 9. Pension Benefits and Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions
Plan Descriptions. The District participates in one single-employer defined benefit pension plan, being the
Retention Bonus Plan, and two single-employer defined benefit postemployment healthcare plans, being the
Early Retirement Health Insurance Plan and the Implicit Rate Subsidy Health Insurance Plan. The Board of
Trustees (the " Board") has the authority for establishing and amending any of these plans. None of these plans
issue a separate report.
Under the Retention Bonus plan, a retention bonus is granted to an employee who has completed a minimum of
ten (I 0) years of continuous satisfactory service as an employee of the District, upon completion of his/her
contract during the year in which he/she reaches the aforementioned qualifications. The employee shall be
eligible for a one (I )-time retention bonus of one (I) percent per year of employment of his/her placement on the
salary schedule upon leaving the District. Any employee meeting the retention bonus requirements, or his/her
estate, shall be paid the retention bonus when separation is forced due to sickness or death. An employee who
completes any portion of a contract year and then is forced to tenninate due to sickness or death shall receive
credit for a full contract year when computing the retention bonus. Upon written notification, the employee may
elect full payment of the retention bonus at the time of separation, or the employee may elect to defer all, or a
portion, of the retention bonus until the first pay period of the next calendar year following the date of
termination. Employees whose absence is the result of a Board approved leave of absence shall remain eligible
for the retention bonus.
Under the Early Retirement Health Insurance Plan, the District offers qual ifYing employees an early retirement
incentive program, which includes continuing medical insurance benefits. Employees quality for the benefit by
(I) agreeing to accept early retirement and (2) meeting the eligibility requirements of the Wyoming Retirement
System and/or completing 20 years of service with the District. The medical insurance benefit continues for ten
years, or until the participant reaches age 6S, whichever is shorter. The payment of health insurance benefits is
equal to the amount paid for single coverage up to a maximum of $SOO per month or a maximum of $SOO per
month towards family coverage. There were 326 persons eligible for this program and 221 participants at June
30, 2014.
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Note 9. Pension Benefits and Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (Continued)
Under the Implicit Rate Subsidy Health Insurance Plan, the District allows retiring employees to remain on the
District 's health insurance plan, as long as the retiring employee pays their full premium each month.
Employees qualify for the benefit by retiring with the District. In this situation, the retired employee may remain
on the District's health insurance plan until the participant reaches age 65 .

Funding Policy. The District finances these programs on a " pay-as-you-go" basis. The Board has the authority
for establishing and amending the funding policy.

Annual Pension and OPEB Cost and Net Pension and OPEB Obligation. The District's annual pension and
other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of
the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement
27 for the pension benefit and GASB Statement 45 for the postemployment benefits other than pensions. The
ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year
and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The
following table shows the components of the District's annual pension and OPEB cost for the year, the amount
actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the District's net pension and OPEB obligation:

Annual Required Co ntribution
Interest on net pension and OPEB
obligation
Adjustment to annual req uired
contribution
Annua l pension and OPEB cost
Contributions made
Increase in net pen sio n and OPEB
ob ligation
Net pension and OPEB obligationbeginning ofyear
Net pens ion and OPEB obligationend ofyear

Pension
Retention Bonus
Plan
$
%0,393

OPEB
Early Retirement
Implicit Rate Subs idy
Health Insurance Plan
Health Insurance Plan
$
1,602,832
$
651,479

131 ,674

(45,372)

77,840

(197,634)
894,433
(I ,506,869)

68,101
674,208
(939,114)

(116,832)
1,563,840
(1,078,894)

(612,436)

(264,906)

484,946

(I ,296,349)

2,223,990

6,172,436
$

5,560,000

==========

$
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Note 9. Pension Benefits and Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (Continued)
The District's annual pension and OPEB cost, the percentage of annual pension and OPEB cost contributed to
the plan, and the net pension and OPEB obligation for 2014, 2013 and 2012 for each of the plans were as
follows:

Year Ended

Annual pension
and OPEB cost

Percentage of
pension and OPEB
cost contributed

Pension- Retention Bonus Plan:
894,433
168.5%
6/30120 14
$
695,
177
154.5%
6/3012013
6/30120 12
638,382
176.4%
OPEB- Early Retirment Health Insurance Plan:
6/3012014
674,208
139.3%
6/3012013
627,761
155.5%
151.2%
6/30120 12
638,396
OPEB -implicit Rate Subsidy Health Insurance Plan
6/30120 14
1,563,840
69.0%
82.4%
6/3012013
880,454
858,978
77.9%
6/3012012

Net pension and
OPEB obli~tion
$

5,560,000
6, 172,436
6,551,533
( 1,56 1,255)
( I ,296,349)
(948, 116)
2,708,936
2,223,990
2,069,425

Funded Status and Funding Progress. The funded status of the plans as of June 30, 20 I4, being the actuarial
valuation date, was as follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (a)
Actuarial value of plan assets (b)
Unfunded act uarial accrued liability
(fu ndin g excess) (a) - (b)
Funded ratio (b) I (a)
Covered payro ll (c)
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability
(funding excess) as a percentage of
covered payro ll ([(a)- (b)) I (c))

Pension
Retention Bonu s
Plan
$
11 ,841,26 1

OPEB
Early Retirement
Implicit Rate Subsidy
Health Insurance Plan
Health Insurance Plan
$
6,661 ,885
$
13,873,688

$

11,841,261

$

6,661,885

$

13,873,688

$

0%
11 9, 117,619

$

0%
119, 11 7,619

$

11 9, 11 7,619

9.94%

5.59"/o

0%

11 .65%

The required schedule of funding progress immediately following the notes to the financial statements presents
multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over
time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. ·
Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of
events in the future . Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future .
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Note 9. Pension Benefits and Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (Continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation
date. Actuarial calculations reflect long-term perspective and employ methods and assumptions that are
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets.
Significant methods and assumptions were as follows :
Pension
Retention Bonus
Plan
6/30/2014
Entry Age
Level dollar, open

Early Retirement
Health Insurance Plan
6/30/2014
Entry Age
Level dollar, open

Implicit Rate Subsidy
Health Insurance Plan
613012014
Entry Age
Level dollar, open

30 years
Fair value of assets

30 years
Fair value of assets

30 years
Fair value of assets

3.5%

3.5%

3.5%

NIA

9.0% for 20 14; decreasing
each year until4.8% in year 2024
and after; includes 0.3% increase
effective 2018to reflect estimated
impact ofPPACA excise tax

9.0% for 2014; decreasing
each year until4 .8% in year 2024
and after; includes 0.3% increase
effective 2018 to reflect estimated
impact ofPPACA excise tax

Assumed rates of increase
apphed to retiree premiums

N/A

Same as HCCTR

Same as HCCTR

ProJected salary increases

3.3%

NIA

N/A

Actuarial valuation date
Actuartal cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method
Actuarial assumptions:
Discount Rate
Healthcare Cost Trend Rate
(H CCTR)

OPEB

Note 10. Subsequent Event
On July 2, 2014, the District entered into a three year lease agreement for the building that houses the East High
CLAS program for the period August I, 2014 through July 31, 2017. The lease agreement requires annual
payment of $25,441 in 2014 with a 3% increase the following two years. This lease will be reported as an
operating lease and accordingly not capitalized.
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Note 11. Recent Pronouncements
In June 2012, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting {or Pensions, which replaces GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting {or Pensions by State
and Local Government Employers for most government pensions. Statement 68 requires governments providing
defined benefit pensions to recognize their long-term obligation for pension benefits as a liability for the first
time, and to more comprehensively and comparably measure the annual costs of the pension benefits. The
Statement also enhances accountability and transparency through revised and new note disclosures and required
supplementary information (RSI).

GASB Statement No. 68 is effective for years beginning after June 15, 2014 with the effects of changes made to
comply with this statement reported as adjustments to prior periods. The effect that the adoption of GASB
Statement No. 68 will have on the District's financial statements has not been determined.
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LARAMIE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounts
Original

Budgetary fund balance, July I, 20 I 3

$

Revenues
Local
County
State
Federal
Total reven ues
Expenditures
Instruction
Instructional support
General support
Non-instructional support
Capital facilities
Debt service and fund transfers
Total expenditures
Budgetary fund balance, June 30, 20 14

$

Final

Actual Amounts
Variance with
Budgetary Basis
Final Budget
Positive(Negative)
(See Note 1)

29,342,404

$ 29,342,404

$ 28,6 I 5,83 7

29,544,891
8,75 1, 186
154,390,2 15
54 1, 100

29,544,89 1
8,75 1, 186
154,390,2 15
541 , 100

30,408,527
8,627,926
154,813,814
510,898

I 93,227,392

193,227,392

194,36 1,165

1, 133,773

I I 8,537,955
20,275,292
60,863,143
1,40 1,200
500,000
1,015,000

I I9,287,955
20,275,292
59,883,143
1,701,200
680,000
1,0 15,000

I 18,528,787
18,288,874
56,393,295
1,700,933
53 2,692
1,000,000

759, 168
1,986,418
3,489,848
267
147,308
15,000

202,592,590

202,842,590

196,444,581

6,398,009

19,727,206

$ 26,532,421

19,977,206

$

See Accompanyi ng Notes to Required Supplementary Information
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$

(726,567)

863,636
( 123,260)
423,599
(30,202)

$

6,805,215

LARA MI E C O UNTY SC HOOL DISTRICT NO. I
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SC HED ULE
G RANTS F UND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014
Budgeted Amounts

Budgetary fund balance, July I, 20 13
Revenues
Local
State
Federal
Other and fund transfers
Total revenues
Expenditures
Instruction
Instructional support
General support
Non-instructional support
Debt service and fun d transfers
Total expenditures
Budgetary fu nd balance, June 30, 20 14

Actual Amounts
Bu dgetary Basis
(See Note I )

Varia nce with
Final Budget
Positive(N ega tive)

Original

Final

$ (2,737,920)

$ (2,737,920)

1,437,95 1
5,72 1,364
10,592,669

1,437,95 1
5,72 1,364
10,592,669

1,38 1,896
5,8 15,420
10,442,378
(63,080)

(56,055)
94,056
( 150,291)
(63,080)

17,75 1,984

17,75 1,984

17,576,6 14

( 175,370)

8,959,770
6,379,660
1,11 7,266
95,288
1,200,000

9,634,770
6,604,660
7 17,266
95,288
1,200,000

9,575,324
6,5 15,206
633,590
73,076
I, 154,096

59,446
89,454
83,676
22,2 12
45,904

17,75 1,984

18,25 1,984

17,95 1,292

300,692

$ (2,737,9202

$ p,237, 920~

$

$

(2, 745,479)

(3, 120,157)

See Accompanying Notes to Required Supplementary In fo rmation
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$

$

(7,559)

11 7,763
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(I)

EXPLANATION Of DIFFERENCES BETWEEN BUDGETARY AND GAAP REVENUES
AND EXPENDITURES
General
F und

Revenues:
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) from the budgetary
comparison schedule

Grants
Fund

$

$ 194,36 1,165

17,576,614

Differences - budget to GAAP:

(2,696)

Transfers included in budget revenue
Adjustments to accrue property tax
receivables, interest and other
revenues

(21 ,246)

1, 129,775

(106, 100)

Proceeds from sale of capital assets and insurance

(I ,683,598)

Discretely presented component unit
Total revenues as reported on the statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances - governmental funds

$ 192,550,22 1

$

18,703,693

Expenditures:
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) from the budgetary
comparison schedule

$ 196,444,581

$

17,951 ,292

Differences - budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances

(3,687,237)

(346, 132)

Accrual for accounts payable, prepaid items and
other expenditures

(2,862,433)

167,478

Transfers included in budget expenditures

(3, 799,045)
888,2 13

Capital outlay from proceeds of capital lease

93,532

(1,683,598)

Discretely presented component unit
Total expendirures as reported on the statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances - governmental funds

(1 , 158,251)

$ 185,300,481
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$

16,707,919

LARAMIE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. I
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014
Pension - Retention Bonus Plan

Actuarial
Valuation
Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets (a)

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL) Entry
Age (b)
11 ,841,261
I I ,672,842
11,909,592

6/30/20 14
6/30/20 12
6/30/2010

Unfunded
AAL
(UAAL)
(b - a)
11 ,841 ,261
11 ,672,842
11 ,909,592

Funded
Ratio
(alb)
0%
0%
0%

Covered
Payroll
(c)
119, 117,6 19
111 ,891 , 166
107,98 1,8 17

UAALas a
Percentage
of Covered
Payroll
((b- a)/c)
9.94%
10.43%
II 03%

OPEB - Ea rly Retirement Health Insurance Plan

Actuarial
Valuation
Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets (a)

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL) Entry
Age (b)
6,66 1,885
7,567,953
7,996,292

6/30/2014
6/30/2012
6/30/2010

Unfunded
AAL
(UAAL)
(b - a)
6,661 ,885
7,567,953
7,996,292

Funded
Ratio
(alb)
0%
0%
0%

Covered
Payroll
( c)
119, 11 7,6 19
111 ,891 , 166
107,981 ,8 17

UAAL as a
Percentage
of Covered
Payroll
((b -a)/c)
5.59%
6.76%
7.41 %

OPEB - Implicit Rate Subsidy Health Insurance Plan

Actuarial
Valuation
Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets (a)

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL) Entry
Age (b)
13,873,688
8,726,995
9,430,446

6/30/20 14
6/30/20 12
6/30/20 10

Unfunded
AAL
(UAAL)
(b - a)
13,873,688
8,726,995
9,430,446

Funded
Ratio
(alb)
0%
0%
0%

Schedule of E m~lo ~e r Contributions- Retention Bonus

Year Ended
6/30/2014
6/30/20 13
6/30/2012
6/30/2011
6/30/2010
6/30/2009

Annual
Required
Contribution

( a~

Actual
Contributions (b)

960,393
737,948
672,553
918, 103
863 ,794
781 ,048

I ,506,869
1,074,274
1, 125,816
756,773
1,295,7 12
I ,620,806
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Percentage
Contributed (b/al
156.90%
145.58%
167 .39%
82.43%
150.00%
207.52%

Covered
Payroll
( c)
119, 11 7,619
111 ,891,166
107,981 ,817

UAAL as a
Percentage
of Covered
Payroll
((b- a)/c)
11.65%
7.80%
8.73%

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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LARAMIE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. I
NON-MAJOR FUNDS
COMBJNTNG BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2014

Special Revenue Funds
Major
Maintenance
Fund

CCRD
Fund

Capital
Projects
Fund

Total

ASSETS
$

Cash and cash equtvalents
Cash with fiscal agent
Investments
Recetvables
Property taxes
Accounts
Due from other governments
Accrued interest recetvable
Due from other funds
Inventory
Prepaid items

41,327

$

1,569,713

$

367,947

991 ,474

5,791 .805

$

1,400,748
7,361.518

3,260,644

3,260,644
385

385
216,825

216,825

s

4 ,468,943

s 12,240,120

$

1.669,041

2.595,6 15

1,626.788

1,848,366

991,474

99 1,474

4,287,303

5,435,455

Deferred inflows of resources
Una vailable property taxes
Unavailable receivables

455,883

455,883

Total deferred tnflows of resources

455,883

455,883

216,825

216,825

17,088,570

1,389,462
5,233,563
17,088,570

( 17,579.638)

( 17,579,638)

s

Total assets

s

1,611 ,040

6,160,137

LIABILITIES, DERERR.ED TNFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Ltabtli ties
Accounts payable
Accrued hablittes
Due to other funds
Unearned revenue
Deposits held for others

$

926.574

221,578

221,578

Total habthues

Fund balances·
Nonspendable
Inventories
Prepaid items
Restricted for ·
Grants
CCRD projects
Major matntenance projects
Cap11al projects
Commmed to
Dnver's education reserve
Music umforrn reserve
Equtpment reserve
Career and techmcal educauon reserve
Future land purchases
Distrtct enhancements
ASSigned
Unassigned

926,574

I ,389,462

5,233,563

1,389,462

Total fund balances
Total habthttes. deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances

$

$

1,6 11 ,040

(274,243)

5,233,563

s

6,160, 137
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s

4,468,943

6.348,782

s 12,240,120

LARAMI E COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. I
NON-MAJOR FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
C HANGES IN FUND BALANCES
For the Year Ended June 30,2014

SJ!Ccial Revenue Funds
Major
CCRD
Maintenance
Fund
Fund
Revenues
Taxes
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Indirect cost reimbursement
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

s

s

Es penditures
CurTent
Instruction·
Regular
Special education
Vocattonal education
Suppon services
Pupil servtces
Instructional s taff servtces
General administration services
School administration servtces
Business services
Operation & maintenance of plant servtces
Pupil transpon ation services
Central services
Other suppon services
Community servtces
Employee benefit fundmg
Capital outlay
Debt service.
Pn nctpal
Interest and other charges

842

4,146

842

5,827,396

Tota l

s

$

5,823,250

Total revenues

I0,389,369

16,212,6 19

4,988

I0,389,369

16,2 17.607

5, 128,294

5,128.294

862

862

5, 128,294

862

Total expendttures

(20)

Excess (defi ciency) of revenues over expenditures
Other fin a ncing sources (uses)
Operating transfers in (out)
Proceeds from capital leases
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Total other linancmg sources (uses)

s

10,505,698

10,505,698

15,634,854
582,753

(724 ,561)

4,482

(720,079)

(724,56 1)

4,482

(720,079)

2, 114,043

Fund balances, July 1, 2013

I 0,505,698

( 116,329)

699,102

(724 ,58 1)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances. June 30, 2014

Capital
Projects
Fund

1,389,462

50

s

699,102

( 111 ,847)

4,534 ,461

(162,396)

5,233,563

$

(274,243)

( 137,326)
6,486, 108

s

6,348,782

LARAMIE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRJCT NO. J
RECONCILIATION SCHEDULE
WDE60J FORM

For the Year Ended June 30, 20J4
Revenues

Expenditures

General Fund:
$

Reported on WDE 60 I
Amounts not reported on WDE 601:
Capital outlay from proceeds of lease
Amounts reported on WDE 60 I :
Transfers
Proceeds from sale of capital assets and insurance
Discretely presented component unit
Accrual adjustments

196,317, 159

$194,713,341
888,213
(3,799,045)

(106, 100)
(1,955,994)
(I , 704,844)

(I ,955,997)
(4,546,031)

$

192,550,221

$ 185,300,481

Reported on WDE 60 I
Amounts not reported on WDE 60 I :
Capital outlay from proceeds of lease
Amounts reported on WDE 601:
Transfers
Accrual adjustments

$

23,404,0 I 0

$ 22,677,799

Total per fund financial statements

$

24,531 ,089

$ 2 1,836,213

$

18,703,693
5,827,396

$ 16,707,919

$

24,531,089

$ 21,836,213

$

11 ,475,430

$ 16,351 ,024

Total per fund financial statements

Special Revenue Fund:

93,532
(2,696)
1,129,775

Reported by fund :
Grants fund
Major maintenance fund
Total per fund financial statements

(1 ,158,251)
223,133

5,128,294

Capital Projects Fund:
Reported on WDE 60 I
Amounts reported on WDE 60 I:
Transfers
Accrual adjustments

(3,979, 161)
2,925,545

Total per fund financial statements
Reported by fund :
Capital projects fund
Special building fund
Total per fund financial statements
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2,689, 135

$

10,421 ,814

$ 19,040,159

$

10,389,369
32,445

$ 10,505 ,698
8,534,461

$

10,421 ,814

$ 19,040, 159

LARAMIE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. I
RECONCILIATION SCHEDULE
WOE 601 FORM
For the Year Ended June 30,2014
Revenues

Expenditures

Enterprise Fund:
Reported on WDE 60 I
Amounts not reported on WDE 60 I:
Equipment purchase
Depreciation
Amounts reported on WDE 60 I :
Transfers
Nonoperating revenues
Accrual adjustments

$

7,37 1,955

Total per fund financial statements

$

1,992,665

$

6,360,207

$

6,287

$

6,974

$

400, 150

$

166,096
( 181 )

$

400, 150

$

165,9 15

$

4,735,703

$

5,476,343

$

6,372,201
(120,435)
96,5 19

( 1,700,000)
(3 ,668,429)
( 10,861 )

11 ,922

Private Purpose Trust Fund:
Reported on WDE 60 I and per fund financial statements
Pension Trust Fund:
Reported on WDE 601
Accrual adj ustments
Total per fund fmancial statement
Agency Fund:
Reported on WDE 60 I

Note: The Agency Fund does not report a fund financial statement for revenues
and expenditures.
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LARAMIE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRJCT NO. J
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30,2014

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/
Program Title

Federal
CFDA
Number

Pass Through
Grantors
Numbers

84.041

NI A

84.010A
84.010A
84.010A
84.010A

1311013TIAOO
1411014TIAOO
1311013TIDOO
1411014TIDOO

Expenditures

U.S. Department of Education:
Direct Program:
Impact Aid PL874

$

389,696

Passed Through the Wyoming Department
of Education:
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies:
Title!
Title I
Title I -Neglected & Delinquent- Subpart 2
Title I - Neglected & Delinquent - Subpart 2
Title I Part A Cluster
English Language Acquisition Grants:
Title lil
Title JIJ

1,420,004
2,841 ,969
44,555
56,535
4,363,063

84.365A
84.365A

1311013T3EOO
1411014T3EOO

9,080
50,168
59,248

Improving Teacher Quality State Grants:
Title II-A
Title II-A

84.367A
84.367A

1311013T2AOO
1411014T2AOO

J ,003,800
850,559
1,854,359

Fund for the Improvement of Education
Fund for the Improvement of Education

84.215X
84.215X

U215XIOOI36
U215XIOO J36

173,513
63,949
237,462

School Improvement Grants:
School Improvement - Pioneer Park
School Improvement - Cole
School Improvement - Cole
School Improvement- Trium ph- Recovery Act

84 .377A
84.377A
84.377A
ARRA-84.388A

School Improvement Grants Cluster

lOJIOIOAGIAI
12110123GIAO
13110133GlAO
IIIIOIIAGIAI

12,953
149,804
284,829
92,122
539,708
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LARAMIE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. I
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/
Program Title

Federal
CFDA
Number

Pass Through

84.048A
84.048A

1311013VEA00
1411014YEAOO

Grantors
Numbers

Expenditures

U.S. Department of Education (continued)
Passed Through the Wyoming Department
of Education: (continued)
Vocational Education- Basic Grants to States:
Perkins
Perkins

81,550
323,636
405, 186

Special Education Cluster:

Special Education Grants to States:
Title YI-B Flow Through
Title Vl-B Flow Through

84.027A
84.027A

1311013T6100
1411014T6100

1,797,262
1,405,742
3,203,004

Special Education - Preschool Grants
Title Vl-B 5 yr. Old
Title VI-B 5 yr. Old

84.173A
84. 173A

1311013T6900
1411014T6900

14,660
3, 167
17,827

Special Education Cluster
College Access Challenge Grant Progrm:
U.W. WY CACG
U.W. WY CACG

3,220,83 1

84.378A
84.378A

10000740-CEHS
I 000074 F-CEH S

131
37,383
37,5 14

Education of Homeless Children and Youth:
McKinney Homeless Grant

84.196A

Education of Homeless Children and Youth Cluster

13 11013HOMAO

27 1
271

Total U.S. Department of Education

11,107,338

U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Passed through the Wyoming Department of
Education:
National School Lunch Program
National School Breakfast Program
Food Distribution
Summer Food Service Program for Children

10.555
10.553
10.550
10.559

Child Nutrition Cluster

2,273,273
61 1,203
325,042
103,780
3,313,298

54

LARAMIE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. J
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014
Federal
CFDA
Number

Federal GrantorfPass-Through Grantor/
Program Title

Pass Through
Grantors
Numbers

Expenditures

U.S. Department of Agriculture (continued):
Passed through the Wyoming Department of
Education:
Child and Adult Care Food Program
Fresh Fruit & Vegetable Program
Team Nutrition Grants

10.558
10.582
10.574

2,591
325,286
12,500

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

3,653,675

U.S. Department of Transportation:
Passed through the Wyoming Department of
Transportation:
Cheyenne Change Attitudes Now
Cheyenne Change Attitudes Now

20.600
20.600

6,324
67,023

SA-20 I 3-13-SA-04
SA-20 I 4-14-SA-05

Total U.S. Department of Transportation

73,347

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards
Notes:
Schedule prepared on the modi tied accrual basis of accounting.
The value of non-cash awards for USDA commodities was $325,042.
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$

14,834,360
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314 West 18th St reet , Cheyenne, Wyoming 82001 -4404

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Board of Trustees and Superintendent
Laramie County School District #1
Cheyenne, Wyoming
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate discretely presented component
unit and remaining fund information of Laramie County School District #1 (the "School District") as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the School District's basic fmancial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
October 27, 2014.
Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School District' s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School District's internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School District's internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's fmancial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School District's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School District's
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the School District's internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Cheyenne, Wyoming
October 27, 2014
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314 West 18th Street. Cheyenne, Wyommg 82001-4404

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Honorable Board ofTrustees and Superintendent
Laramie County School District # 1
Cheyenne, Wyoming
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Laramie County School District #1's (the "School District") compliance with the types
of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of the School District's major Federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2014. The School District's major Federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of fmdings and questioned costs.
Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its Federal programs.
Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the School District's major Federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to frnancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major Federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the School District's
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
Federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the School District' s
compliance.
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the School District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major Federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2014.
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the School District's internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major Federal program
to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major Federal program and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the School District's internal control over compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
Federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a Federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a Federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Cheyenne, Wyoming
October 27, 2014
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LARAM1E COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2014

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued:

Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified?

No

Significant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be material
weaknesses?

No

Non-compliance material to financial statements noted?

No

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified?

No

Significant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be material
weaknesses?

No

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs:

Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with section 510 (a)
of Circular A-133?

No

Identification of major programs:
Title II-A Improving Teacher Quality
State Grants

84.367A

Special Education Cluster

84.027A & 84 .173A

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs:

$ 445,03 I

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Yes

(Continued)
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LARAMIE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1
SCHEDULE O F FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2014

Section D - Financial Statement Findings
None

Section DI- Federal Award Findings & Questioned Costs
None
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LARAMIE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR FEDERAL AUDIT FINDINGS
June 30, 2014

Summary Schedule of Prior Federal Audit Findings
None
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